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General Disclosures
For the nine manths anded 31 December 2014

1

Reporting Directive
This Disclosure Statement has been prepared under the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (Mew
Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (a5 amended).

Registered Bank

Mame: Bank af Indig (Mew Zealand) Limited
Address: 0 Manukau Road
Epsom

Auckiand 1025

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited {the “Bank") was incorporated on g October 2008, It became a
registered bank on 31 March 2021,

For the purposes of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (Mew Zealand Incorporated Registered
Banks) Order 2014 (as amended), the Bank is currently the only entity within the Registered Bank's
Banking Group in Mew Zealand and accerdingly the term "Bank” has the same meaning as the Bank's
Banking Group throughout this Disclosure Statement.

Uitimate Parent Bank and Ultimate Holding Company
Mame: Banik of India
Address:  Star House C-5, & Block

Bandra Kurle Complex

Post Box No. 8135

Bandra {East)

Mumbai 4oo052

India

The obligations of the Bank are quaranteed by its ultimate parent, Bark of India {refer to section &
below for further details ¢n the guarantee arrangement) There has been no change to the ultimate
parent bank ar ultimate holding company since March 2014,

There are no known regulations, leglslation or other restrictions of a legally enforceable nature which
may materially inhibit the legal ability of Bank of India to provide materal financial support to Bank of
Indla {Mew Zealand) Limited.,

Interests in 5% or mare of voting securities of registered bank
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 15 200% owned by Bank of India. Therefore Bank of India has the
abifity to directly appoint 100% of the board of directors of Bank of Indla (Mew Zealand) Limited.

Priority of creditors’ claims
As at 31 December 2o, all creditors of the Bank have equal priarity of claims over the Bank's assets
inthe event that the Bank is llquidated or ceases to trade.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



General Disclosures
For the nine manths ended 31 December 2014

E Guarantee Arrangements
The obligations of Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited are guaranteed under 3 deed of guarantee
dated 14 January 2611 given by fts ultimate parent bank, Bank of ndia, In favaue of the creditors of
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited {"“the Guarantes”)

Capies of the Guarantee are attached as Appendix 3.

The name and addrass for service of the Guarantor is:
Bank of india, Star House, C-5, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Pest Box No.8135, Bandra (East),
Mumbai 400031, India.

Bank of India |5 the Bank's ultimate parent and ultimate holding company. Bank of India is not 2
member of the Banking Group.

Details of the capital adequacy for the Bank of india as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

Capital 373,510,000,000 INR
Capital/Risk Weighted Exposures (34) 1096 %

The Bank of India has the following credit rating with respect to its long term senior unsecured
obligations payable in any country or comency including obligations payable jn New Zealand in New
Zealand dollars:

Rating Agency: Standard & Poor's
Current Credit Rating: BEA- /StablefA-3

On 29 September 2014, Standard & Poar's has revised the outlooks an the long term counterparty
credit ratings on the Bank of India from BBB- (negative) to BEE- (stable).

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1.

Details of Guaranteed Obligations

Bank of India unconditionally guarantees for the benefit of each craditor the due and punctual payment
by Bank of Indla (New Zealand) Limited of each and every obligation (whather at stated

maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise) now or hereafter owing or Lo hecome owling by Bank of India
{New Zealznd) Limited to the creditar during the term of the guarantee.

There are no limits on the amount of the obligations guaranteed under the Guarantes. There are no
material conditions applicable to the Guarantee other than non-performance by the principal obligor

There are no material legislative or regulatory restrictions in India which would have the effect of
subordinating the claims under the Guarantee of any of the creditors of Bank of India (New Zealand)
Limited on the assets of the guarantor, to other claims on the guarantar, in & winding up of that
guarantar

The deed of guarantee daes not have an expiry date.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limitad



General Disclosures
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

]

Guarantee Arrangements (continued)

Material Cross Guarantees
Thigre are no materisl cross guarantees

Directors

There have been two changes in the compasition of the Bank's board of directors since the most
recent full year Disclosure Staternent dated 33 March 2014, Mr.{oteeswaran Rajaveloo who was
appointed to the board an 14 luly 3014 resigned on 31 Becemnber 2014, Mr.Tarun Parbhu Kanji
resigned from the board on 13 June 2014

The Bank has the following directors:

- Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran, Chairman and Independent Directer (appeinted on 33 May 2013}
-Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Independent Director (appointed on 31 May 2012)

- Sameer Handa, Independent Director (appointed on 12 July 2013)

< Sankara Marayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director {appointed on 15 August 2013

. Ranjitkumar Amarendra Iha, Managing Director (appointéd on 13 December 2013)

- Judith Ann Whiteman, Independent Director {(appainted an 4 March 2014)

Communications to the directors should be addressed to:
10 Manukau Road, Epsom, Auckland 1023, New Zealand

Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Judith Ann Whiterman are
independent directors wha are not employees of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited or of any
other entity able to control or significantly influence the Bank. The Chairman of the Board is therefore
independent. Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Ssmeer Handa, Rabin Sockalingam Rabinaran and Judith Ann
Whiterman are residents in Mew Zealand.

Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha, Managing Director, is resident in New Zealand

Sankara Marayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Director, Is resident in India.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limite



General Disclosures
Far the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Cualifications and other directorships

Rabin Em:itaﬁr!gam
Rabindran

Primary Occupation.
Commercial Bamsterand
internationallegal
consultant

Sanjaya Singh Gaut
‘Primary Occupation:
Associate Professorat
Auckland Unlversity of
Technology

‘BameerHanda
Primary Occupation
Chief Executive Officerat
PattonLimited

Sankara Marayanan
Anantharaman
Radhamangalam
Primary Occupation
Bankar

RanjitKumar Amarendra
Jha

Primary Occupation
Banker

Judith &nn Whiteman
Primary Occupation
Andependent consultant
and Director

Bank of india (Mew Zealand) Limited

Qualifications
Barrister—at-Law (Middle
Temple),

Masterof Arts|Business
Law],

Associate Member of
Arbitrators’and
Medlators' institute of NZ
Ini.

Masterof Science (Hons. ),
BachelorofEngineering
tHuns.},'

Masterof Philasophy in
Managerment,
Doctor of Philosophyin
Management.

Bachelor ofEngineering
(B.E. Machanical),
Masterof Business
Administration (MBAJ.

B.Se, MA,

Master of Business
Admiristration [MBA),
Certifled Associate of the
Indian Institute of Bankers
[C.A:00.8), Diploma in
Treasury Management
and Risk Management;
Diplomain Computer
ProgramminG,

PG Diploma in Financial
Management,

PG Diplorma in Personmel
Management

Bachelor of Science,
Certified Associate of the

indian Institute of Bankers

{C.ALLBY

BA- Agcaunting,
Instityte of

Charterad
Accountantsin Australia,
CPAMustralia

Details of other directorships

Auckland Transport, Reglonal Land Transpart
Programme Public Hearings Panel (Chairman),

Election Signs Bylaw Public Hearings Paned (Charman),
New Zealand Liaoning international iInvestrment &
Development Co, Ltd,

Solld Energy New Zealand Limited.

Wil

Refrigerant Recovery NZ, SVM Holdings, Auckland,

Hotunul investments Ltd Mew Zealand, Patton Australia
Pte Ltd, Brishane, Australla, Metjak Pty Ltd,, Perth,
Australia, Air Conditioning & Refrigaration Parts CO Pty
Ltd, Queensland, Australia, Medelea Pty 1-td,, Mew Sould
Walas, Australia, Ozcold PtyLtd,, Gold Coast, Australla,
Fatton Aero Co. Ltd, Bangkok, Thalland, Patton
refrigeration India Pvi. Lid,, india

Commmonwealth Finance Corparation Limited, Hong
Kang

il

Preshyterian Support Northern (Independent Trustee),
Te WaipunaPuawii Mercy Oasisl.td.



General Disclosures
For the nine menths ended 31 December 2014

The directors, theyr immediate relatives and close business associates have not entered into any
transactions with the Bank or any member of the Banking Group which either have been entered into.
on terms other than those under the ordinary course of business of the Bank, or which could otherwise
be reasonably likely to influence materially the exercise of that director's duties.

The Board Audit Committee consists of three directors of which two are independant.

The chairman of the Board Audit Committee is Ms. Judith Ann Whiteman, The other members of the
Board Audit Committes are Mr.Rabin Sockalingam Rabindran and Mr.Sankara Marayanan
Anatharaman Radhamangalam

The responsible person authorised 1o sign this Disclosure Statement on behalf of the Board in accordance
with section Bz of the Reserve Bank of New Zesland Act 1089 is Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha.

The Bank's code of conduct states: Members of core management are expected to devote their total
atténtion to the business interests of the Bank. They are prohibited from engaging in any activity that
Interferes with their performance or responsibilities to the Bank or otherwise is in conflict with or
prejudicial to the Bank. If any member of the core management considers investing In securities lssued
by the Bank's custamers, suppliers ar competitors they should ensure that these investments do not
compromise their responsihilities to the Bank. Many factors including the size and nature of the
Investment; their ability to Influence the Bank's decisions; their access to confidential informiation of
the Bank or any other entity, and the nature of the relationship between the Bank and the counterparty
should be considered in determining whether a conflict exists, Additionally they should disclose to the
Bank any interest which they have which may conflice with the business of the Bank. As a general rule,
the members of the core management shouid avoid conducting the Bank's business with a relative or
any other éntity irl which the relative is assoriated in any significant role: If such a related party
transaction is unavoidable, they must fully disclose the nature of the transaction to the appropriate
authority,

Any dealings with a related party must be conducted insuch a way that no preferential treatment is
given to that party. in the case of any ather transaction or situation giving nse to conflicts of interests,
the appropnate avthonty should, after due deliberations, decide on its impact,

B Auditor
The name and address of the auditor whose report is referred Lo in the Disclosure Statement:
KFMG
18 Viaducr Harbour Avenue
P.O.Box 2584 Shartland Street
Auckland 1140
Mew Zealand

Conditions of Registration

Effective 30 March 2014, the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand (RBMZ) issued revised conditions of
registration for the bank. The conditions of registration has been amended to incorporste the changes
to put into effect restrictions on high |oan-to-valiation residential mortgage lending. The conditions of
registrations also updated certan definitions jn the conditions which become effective on 1 April 2014
under the Financial Reporting Act of zo13. A copy of the full revised conditions of registration effective
on or after 30 March 2014 can be found in Appendix 2.

The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration over the accounting period

Bank of Indla (New Zealand) Limited



General Disclosures
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

1o

i1

Conditions of Registration- continued
Effective 1 July 2014, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) has made changes to the canditions
of registration for the Bank. The changes refer tu:

* Revised version of "Capital Adequacy Framework {Standardised Approach)” (B524), to update
various defined terms relating to capital requirements far the residential mortgage lending.

* Revised version of "Framework for Restrictions on High LVR Residential Mortgage: Lending” (B5ag),
to amencg certain defined terms in the loan-to-valuation ratio (LVR) restrictions applying to cur bank
as a conseguence of changes to B52A and to add additional clauses on anti avoidance.

* Mew versions of several handbook docurments which need updating to take Into account of the
coming into force of the Financial Reporting Act 2013,

Pending Proceedings or Arbitration

Az of the date of this Disclosure Statement, there are no pending legal proceedings or arbliration
cancerning any member of the Bank in New Zealand or elsewhere that may have 2 material adverse
effect on the Bank.

Cradit Ratings
Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited has the following general credit rating applicable to its long term
senior unsecured obligations payable in New Zealand in Mew Zealand dollars.

Rating Agency: Standard and Poor's
Current Crediting Rating BEB-/Stable A-3

On 2g September 2014, Standard & Poor's has revised the outlooks on the long term counterparty
eredit ratings on the Bank of Indla from BBB- (negative) to BBB- [stable),

Descriptions of credit rating scales are contained in Appendix 1.
Other material matters

There are no other material matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank that are not
disclosed in this Disclosure Statement,

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited



Director’s Statement
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Each director of the Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited), believes, after due erquiry, that as at the date an which this
Disclosure Statement s signed:
s The Disclosure Statement is not false or misleading; and

e The Disclosure Statement contains all information that is required by the Reglstered Bank Disclosure
Statements {New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 [as amended).

Furthermaore, each director believes, after due enquiry that over the petiod ended 31 December 2014:
e The Bank has complied with all conditions of registration that applied during the period;
®  Credit exposure to connected persons were not contrary to the interests of the Bank's Banking Group; and

*  The Bank had systems in place to monitor and control adequately the material risks of the Bank's Banking
Group including credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, equity risk, liquidity
risk, aperational risk and other business risks, and that those systems were being properly applied

Signed by Ranjitkemar Amarandra tha as directer and responsible persan on behalf of all the directors: (The
directors of the Bank were Ranjitkurnar Amarendra tha, Sanjaya Singh Gaur, Sameer Handa, Rahin
Sockalingam Rabindran, Sankara Narayanan Anantharaman Radhamangalam, Judith Ann Whiterran).

T

Ranjitkumar Amarendra Jha
Managing Director

1z February 1015

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limitad
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Interest income
Interest expense
Netinterest income

Otherincome
Total operating income

Operating expenses
Impairrment losses on laans and advances
Profit before income tax

Taxation expense
Net Profit after tax

Other Comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Balance asat 2 April 2013
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance as at 31 December 2013(Unaudited)

Balance as at 2 April 2013
Tatal comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2014 (Audited)

Balance as at 1 April zo14
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance as at 31 December zo14(Unaudited)

{(Unaudited)

31-Dec-14

Note 5000
F 3,027

z (B57)

2,370

3 264
2,634

b {1,537}
8 (B2}
(=14

{172}
443

43

Share Capital

000
50,000

50,000
50,000
50,000

50,000

50,000

(Audited) (Unaudited)

31-Mar-14

3,287
FA)
2825

378
3,203

[2.448)
(95)
Gho

(154]
466

466

Retained
Earnings
$000
473

409

882

473
466

933

939
443
1,382

31 Dec-13
$000
2,428

(323)

2,205

235
2,400

(,724)
(95)
[4:5]

{172}
409

403

Total

10?0
50,473
404
5o,B82

50473
466

50,539

50,939
dd3
51,382

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in

confunction with the financial statements.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2014

ASSETS

Cash

Due from other financial institutions
Balance due from related parties
Loans and advances

G57 Refundable

Dtherassets

Current tax assets

Property and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Total Interest Earning and Discount Bearing Assets

LIABILITES

Balance due to related parties
Deposits and other borrowings
Other liabilities

Current tax llability

Total liabilities

MET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital

Retained earnings

Total shareholder's equity

Total interest and Discount Bearing Liabilities

MNote {Unaudited)

31-Dec-14

$000

53
18,808

c 3,283
56,359

L34

1,068
g
Bo,i50
78,621

5 16,189
14,218

303

58

28,768

53,382

& 50,000
1,382

51,382

26,723

{Audited) (Unaudited)

31-Mar-14

5000

65
16,240
2,752
48,564

361

1,149
6o
69,081
67,138

13,7532
6,123
257

10
18,142

50,939

50,000
935

50,939
16,561

31-Dec-13

5000

129
10,083

2,840
9,104

382

1,183
G2
63,839

61,900

f,507
6,250
I00

12,957

o, 882

50,000

88z
cn, 882
12,033

Mo financial assets presented in the statement of financial position have been pledged as coliateral for liabilities or

contingent liabilities.

The board of directors of Bank of India (New Zealand) Lirnited authorised these financial statemnents far lssue on 12

February 2018,

Signed for and on behalf of the board of directors

It

Ranjitkumar Amarendra fha

The accompanying notes on pages 12 1o 35 form an imtegrn| par? of these financlal statements and should be read in

conjunction  with the financial statements.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received

Fees and otherincome

Operating expenses paid

GST refund received

Interest paid

incarme tax paid

increase in advances to customers

Met proceeds from related parties
[Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers
Net cash flow used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease in balances with other financial institutions
Purchase of property and eguipment

Met cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares

{Payment to)fproceeds from torelated parties
MNet cash flow used in financing activities

Metincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
Cash andcash equivalent is made up of:
Cash

Cash equivalent due fram otherfinancial institutions at call

Total cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes on pages 12 e 36 form anintegral part of these financial statements and should be read in

conjunction  with the fingncinl statements.

Bank of India {Mew Zealand) Limitad

Mote (Unaudited)

31-Dec-14
$000

4923
230
{2,998)
78
{453)
(145)
(7.916)
3,898
6,095
2,708

{3,000)

(12]
(3,012)

{304

7,705
71401

93
7,208

7r401

(Audited)
32-Mar-24
s000

3564
165
{z.278)
1bg
(505)
[164)
(18,168)
7k
{2,550)
[12,653)

16,500
(B43)
15,851

3,348
4,507
7795

65
7,640

7,795

(Unaudited)
32-Dec
$000

2,673
115
{1,752}
178
{300}
{164)
(1B,768)
LI73
(2,423)
(18,660)

18,000
(G5H)
17,342

{2,328
h,507
3,18y

12y
3,060

3,189
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13

Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited (the "Bank") is a profit-oriented entity incorporated under the Companies
Actiggyand domiciled in Mew Zealand. Its principal activity is the provision of banking services. Bank of India
{New Zealand) Limited was incorporated on g Getober 2008, It became a registered bank on 31 March 2o

The Bank is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 2013 (FRA 2013). Its financizl
statements comply with the requirements of that Act and the requirements of the Registered Bank Disclosure
Statement (Mew Zealand Incorporated  Banks) Order 2014, {as amended).

These financial statements have bean prepared |n accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Mew
Zealand ("NZ GAAP"), as appropriate for profit-ariented entities, and the New Zealand equivalent to International
Accounting Standards ("NZ  1A5") 34 Interir Financial Reparting and should be read in conjunction with the
Disciosore Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

These fimancial staternents comply with Intemational Accounting Standards 34 Interim Financial Reporting as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors an 22 February 2025,

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of histarical cost, except for certain financial Instruments
whichare carried at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency is New Zealand Dollars [NZ2D).

Accounting policies are selected and applied in s manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and refizbility, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying
transactions or other events s reported.

Accounting judgments and major sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Bank's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considerad to be relevant. Actual results: may differ from these estimates. The estimates and undertying
assumptions are reviewed on anongong basis. Revisionsto accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate |s revised if the revision affects only that penod or in the penod of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects bath current and future penods. The same accounting policies and metheds of
computation have been followed in these interim financial statements as were applied in the preparation of the
Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014,

Alfowance for impairment losses
impairment allowance on each loan or receivable is evaluated based upon management's judgments in applying
the accounting  policy In1.14.

The determination of impalrment allowance required for loans which are deemed to be individually signiificant oftean
requires the use of considerable mianagement judgement concerning such matters as local economic canditions,
the financial performance of the counterparty and the value of any collataral held, for which there may not be 2
readily accessible market. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may differ from the
estimates used by the management and consequently may cause actual losses to differ fram the reportad
allowances

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited



1.4

1.5

Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Standards and Interpretatiornis effective in current pariod
The following standards and interpretations have become mandatory for the Bank since the previous balance date,

NZ IAS 32 (Amendment)- Finantial Instruments: Presentation- The amendment clarifies existing application issues
relating tothe offsetting rules and reduces the level of diversity in current practice, it also clarifies the meaning of
"currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off* and "simultaneous realisation and settlement,

MNZ IFRS 10,NZ IFRS 12 and NZ IFRS 27 (Amendment) -Investment Entities- The amendment requires a qualifying
investmeant entity to account for investment controlled entities -as investrments in assaciates and joint ventures- at
fair value through profit or lass; the only exception would be subsidiaries that are considered an extension of the
Investment entity's iInvesting activities. The consolidation exception is mandatory- not optional,

MZ [AS 36 (Amendment) - Impairment of Assets - The amendment reverses the unintended requirement in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement to disclose the recoverable-amount for every cash-generating unit to which significant
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allncated. Under the amendments, recoverable amounts is
required to be disclosed only when an  impairment foss has been remgnize:f or reversed.

NZ IAS 35 (Amendment)  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - The amendment allows hedge
accountingto continue In 3 situation where a derivative, which has been designated 2s s hedging instrument, Is
novated to effect clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation, |f specific conditions are met
{in this context; a novation indicates that parties toa contract agree to replace their original counterparty with a new
anej;

IFRIC 21- Levies - The Standard provides guidance on the accounting of levies in accordance with the requirements
of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, The Standards provides insights regarding the
defirition of levies, and thetiming or recognition of provision related to government impose fevies.

The amendments to the standards did not have any impact on the accounting policies, fmancial position or
performance of the Bank.

Standards and Interpretations In issue not yet adopted

IFRS 15— Revenue from customers NZ IFRS 15 replaces the following.
-1AS 18 Revenue '
- 1AS 11 Construction Contracts

IFRIC 13 Custormer Loyaity Programimes
- IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
- 5iC 31 Revenue = Barter Transactions invelwing Advertising Services
The new Standard has introduced a new maodel for the recognition of revenue using which revenue is required to be
recognized. The model requires revenue to be recagnizad based an the contractual implications of individual
contracts. Moreover, consideration s required to be measured as the amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled, rather than fairvalue of consideration, [tis applicable for annual periods beginning onor aftera lanusary
2018,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

IFRS g— Financial instruments

The Standards has completely bean issued by |ASE for implementation. The Standards has specified how entity
should classify and measure financial assets and lisbilities. The Standard has also issued a new impairment model
similar 1o the model proposed 10 2023, This Standard is applicable for annual penods beginning on or after z
January zo17

ME IFRS g (2013) - Financial instruments
Thee Standard provides a more principle-based approach to hedge sccounting and aligns hedge accounting maore
closely with risk management. The Standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2013.

IAS 27 —Equity method in separate financial statements

The amendments have introduced the option 1o use equity method In separate financial statements, and apply to
the accounting  not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for subsidiaries. The amendments are applicable
for annual periods beginning on or after 2 January 2026

Amendments to Defingd Benefit Plans: Employes Cantributions (Amendment to |AS 1g)
The amendments intraduce a practical expedient for accounting for certain contributions from employaes or third
parties to defined benefit plans. The amendments have made such tontributions eligible for the practical
axpedient if they are:
-+ Setout |n the formal terms of the plan

Linked to service; and

Independent of the number of years of service
When contributions are eligible far the practical expedient, a company is permitted to recognize them as & reduction
of the service cost in the penod inwhich the related service is rendered. This amendment is applicable for periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

Amendments to NZ IAS 8 and 1AS 38

The Standard clarifies that it is not appropriate to have a depreciation or smortisation method which is based on
revenye generated from an activity includes the use of an asset. It is not appropriate, because a revenue-based
method would reflecta pattern of economic benefits generated from operating the business (of which the asset Is
part}, rather than economic benefits consymed through use of the asset. The Standard is applicabie for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

Amendment to IFRS 11— Acquisition of interest in joint ventures

This Standard addresses how a jnint operalor aceounts for the acquisition of an interest in‘a joint operation in which
the activity of the joint aperation canstitutes a business, The joint operator applies the relevant principles far
business combinations accourrting in NZ IFRS 3 Business Combinations and other relevant Standards. This is
applicable for annual periods beginning an or afters January 2016,

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

Effective for reparting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. This standard includes amendments to a number of
Standards thatare largely clarifications, including for example, amendments to NZ 1AS 24 Related Party
Disclosures, which clarifies that s management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity 15 a related party of the reporting entity,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 Decamber 2014

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2013-2014 Cycle
The IASE has issued an exposure draft (ED), proposing amendments to the following four standards:
IFRS g Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
'IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures
- 1A51g Employes benefits
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
Except forthe proposed amendments ta IFSR 5, the proposals would apply retrospectively for annual periods
beginning onor aftera January 2046,

Foreigncurrency transactions

The Bank’s financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). The results ard financial position of the Bank are expressed in New Zealand dallars
(MZD), whichis the functional and presentation currency of the Bank and are rounded to the nearest thousand.

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the Bank's functional currency
(Forelgn currencies) are recorded at the rates of sxchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling at the end of
the reporting period.

Mon-ronetary Items carmed at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histarical cost ina
foreign currency  are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they anse except when deferred inother
comprehensive  income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The profit and lgss component of the statement of comprahensive income and all itams in the statement af financial
position have been prepared so that all components are stated inclusive of GST except to the extent that G5T is
recoverable fromthe Inland Revenue.

Comparatives
When the presentation or classification of items |s changed, comparative amounts are reclassified unless the
reclassification is impracticable. There have been no presentation or classification changes in the current period.

Revenue recognition
Revenue s recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that economic benefits will flow to the Bank and that revenue can be
reliably measured. The principz! sources of revenue are interest incorne and fees,

Interest
For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective interest method is used to measure the interest
incame or  expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive mcome.

For financial instruments measured at fair value, interest mcome or expense is recognised on an accrual basis on g
yieldto maturity basis,
Fees are generally recognised on an ecerual basis when the service has been provided.

Lending Fees

Fees and direct costs relating to loan ongmation, financing or restructuning and to loan commitments are deferred
and amortsed o interest income over the [ife of the loan using the effective interest method. Lending fees not
directly related to the origination of a ioan are recognised over the period of service, .

Bank of india [New Zealand) Limited 15
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Cammission and other fees

Commussions or fees related to specific transactions or events are recogrised i the statement of comprehensive
incorme when the service s provided to the custamer. When they are charged for services provided aver a period,
they are taken to other income on an accrual basis as the service s provided

Other income

Dividend income is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income when the Bank’s nght to receve the
dividend is established. Realised and unrealised gains and losses from remeasurement of financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss are included in other income.

Finance costs
Interest expense is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest method. All other finance costs are
recognised in profit or  loss in the penod in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Incame tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the repoarting period. Tanable profit differs from profit as
reported in the  statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other periodsand it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reparting penod

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recognised on differences betwesn the carrying amounts of assets and liabilines in the financial
statermentsand the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using
the balance sheet liahility ‘method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are  generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that itis probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utifised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if  the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or fram the initial recognition (ather than in a business combination) of otherassets and |iabiiities in & transaction
that affects neither the taxable prafit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interesis
areonly recognised to the extent that it is probabie that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeabla future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting perlod and reduced to the
extent that itisno longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to sllow all or part of the asset to
be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and |iabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liabllity i5 settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end af the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabllities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow fram the  mannerin which the Bank expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabllities,

Bank of Indla [New Zealand) Limited
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Motes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 32 December zo14

Deferred tax assets and llabilities sre offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets
against current tax fiabilities and when they relate to Income taxes [evied by the sarme taxation authority and the
Bank Intends ta settie its current  tax assets and |iahilities on a net basis.,

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except whien they relate to iterms
recogmsed In other comprehensive income or directly in equity, inwhich case the tax Is also recognised in other
comprehensive incomaor directly in equity

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash, cash at bank, cash in transit and call deposits due fromto other banks, all
of which are used in the day-to-day cash management of the Bank.

Statement of cash flows
The follawing terms are used in the statement of cash flaws;
. operating activities are the principal reverue producing activities of the Bank and other activitles that are not
Investing or finanting activities,
. Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not
Included In cash equivalents; and

. financing activities are activities That result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and
borrowings of the Bank.

Certain cash flows have been netted in order ta provide more meaningful disclosures, as many cash flows are
received and disbursed on behalf of customers ana reflect the activities of those customers.

Financial Assats

Fimancial assets are classified into the fallowing specified categones: financial assets "at fair value through profit or
loss' (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and Yoans and receivables’,
The classification depends  onthe nature and purpose of the financial assets and 15 determined at the tme of initial
recognition, The Bank classifiesall of its' financial assets as [oans and receivabies

Loans and receivables

Loans and recewables that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market are classified
as loans and receivables. Loans and recemvables are measured a1 amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any Impairment.

Interest ingorne is recagnised by applying the effactive interest rate.

Recognition of financial assets
Loans and receivables are recognised on settlement date and are recognised inibally at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicatars of impaifment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of ane ar more events that occurred after the initlal
recogrition of the financial -asset, the estimated future cash flows of the mvestment have been impacted.

Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited 17



Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

= significant financial difficulty of the Issuer or counterparty; or
«  default or delinquency ininterest or principal payments; ar
« it hecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-crganmisation,

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans and advances, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are  subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a partfollo of receivables could Include the Bank's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past  the average credit period of 6o days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic canditions that correlste with  default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of loans and advances, where the carrying amount Is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
When a loan or advance s considered uncoliectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account, Changes in the earrying
armount of the allowance account are recogrised inprofit or loss.

Asset Quality

Impaired assets consist of assets acquired through the enforcement of security and other impaired assets.

Assets acquired through secunty enforcemnent sre those assets (primarily real estate) acquired through actual
fareclosure orin full or partial satisfaction of a dabt: Other impaired assets refer to any credit exposure for which
an impairment loss Is recognised In accordance with NZ 1AS 35 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, '

A go day past due asset is any loan which has niot been operated by the borrower within ts key tarms for a1 least go
daysand which is not animpaired asset. Although not classified as impaired assets or past due assets, assetsin
which the counter-party is  in receivership, liquidation, bankruptcy, statutory managemeant or any farm of
administration are reported separately, Theseare classified as "other assets under administration®.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity, If
the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an assaciated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred finanicial
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the finandal asset and alsa  recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received,

Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine manths ended 31 December 2014

Financial Liahilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities *at FYVTPL' or “other financial llabilities’,

Financial lisbilities are classified as at FYTPL where the financial liability is elther held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

The Bank classifies all of its financial llabilities as other financial liabilities, Cther finantial labifities are initially
measured at fair  value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
Interest expense r&CﬂgnlSEﬂ onan effective interest basis:

The Bank derecognises financiel hiabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire,

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership tothe lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Bank at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
15 included inthe statement  of financial position as a finance lease obligation:

L.ease payments are apoortioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease cbligation so as to achleve a
constant rate  of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to profit or
loss in accordance with the  Bank's general policy on financing costs. Contingent rantals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
anather systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern over which ecanomic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed,

Inthe event that lease Incentives are received to anter into operating leasss, such incentives are Initially recordad as 2
lability and  are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight.line basis over the lease term

Property and equipment

All items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulzted depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item, Inthe event that
settlernent of all or partof the purchase consideration Is deferred, cast is determined by discounting the amounts
payable in the future to their present value as  at the date of acquisition. Subsequent costs are capitalised if it Is
prabable that future economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the costs can be measured reliably. All other
maintenance costs are recognised as an expense as incumed.

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than freehold land, over ther estimated useful
lives, using the - straight-line method or the written down value method, The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are  reviewed at the end of each reporting pertod, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounteo for on a prespective basis. The  following depreciation retes have been used!

Office equipment 10% written dewn value method
Furniture 10% written down value method
Leasehold improvements 8% straight-fine method
Computer equipment 33.33% straight-line method

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited 19
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tmpairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment joss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment |oss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of
the tash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 'Where a reasaonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
Identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-  generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonzble and  consistent allocation basis can be identified,

Recaverahle amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use, In 8ssessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time  value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carmying amount, the
carrying amoont of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount: Animpairment loss s
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
Impairment loss (s treated as 2 revaluation decrease,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would  have been determined had na impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior perinds. A reversal of an Impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant assat is carried at 3 revalued amount, In. which case the reversal of the impairment loss (s
treated az a revaluation increase.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments Issued by the Bank

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or 25 equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual armangerment.

Equityinstruments

An equity instrement is any contract that evidences a residual intérest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its llabilities. Equrty instrumerits issued by the Bank are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured Initially at their fair values and, If not designated at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with NZ IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative  amortisation recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition palicies as set out at 1.5 above,

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
It is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to settle the prasent
obligation at theend of the reparting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provisionis measured  using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its

carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or 2! of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it |5 virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the

amount of the recelvable can be measured raliably,

Employee benefits

A pravision is recognised for benefits accruing to emplovees in respect of annual leave, long service leave and sick feave whern it is
probabie that settiement will be reguired and they are capable of being measured reliably

Provimions made in respect of employee henefits expected to be settled within 13 months are messured at theirnominal values
uging the remuneratlon rate expected to apply &t the time of settlement. Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which
are not expected to be settled within 22 months are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows ta be
enade by the Bank in respect of services provided by employees up to the reparting date.

INTEREST

Interestincome

Loansand advances
From other financial Institutions
From related parties
‘Total interestincome

Interest expense

Deposits by customers
Deposits by related parties
‘Total interest expense

OTHER INCOME

Banking and lending fee income

MNet commussion revenue

Met foreign exchange gains
:Otherrevenue

G5T recovered
Total otherincome

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

{l.j nauditedi
32-Dec-14
5000

2,588
367
72
3,027

134
523
657

{Unaudited)
31-Dec-14
s000

[

-]

161

35
264

{Auditad)
33-Mar-1y
$o00

2,643

526
&8
3,287

1bo
302
462

(Audited)
31-Mar-14

5000

&
4
ERR
&

213

378

{Unaudited)
31-Deca3
£000

1,957
%23
%8
2,428

259
EEE

(Unaudited)
31-Deca3
$000

26

3

82

5

79

295
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OPERATINGEXPENSES
Operating expensesinclude:

Auditars remuneration
- Audit of Disclosure Statements

- Review of Disclosure Statements

- Advisory fee -assistance with LVR policy.
Directors' fees
Depreciation
Leasehald improvements
Computerequipmant
Office equipment
Fumiture
Totaldepreciation
Employee benefit expenses

Dperating lease rental expenses

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Transactions with related parties

Interestincome

‘Bank of India {parent and ultimate parent)

Otherrelated parties

Interest expense

Bank of indla (parent znd ultimate parent)
Other related parties

Depositswith

Bank of India (parent and ultimate parent)
Otherrelated parties

Depositsfrom

Bank of India (parent and ultimate parent)
Other related parties

Depositswith

Amounts due for settlement within 22 months
Armounts due for settlement after 2z months
Total Deposits with

Depaosits from

Arriounts due forsettlernent within 22 manths
Amounts due for settlement after 22 months
Total Deposits from

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited

{Unaudited)
31-Decas
$000

13

51

11

5
Big
718

{Unaudited)
31-Dec-14
so00

7i

523

3,283

15,808

3,283

3,.283
2,153

1,038
16,189

{Audited)
31-Mar-14
5000

75
22

b1

51
16
8
10

f tals]

954
251

{Audited)
31-Mar-14
t1-1.1]

68
102
2,743
157
11,595
3742
2,742
4014

7.738
11,752

(Unaudited)
j1-Dec-13
s000

23

o

B83

178

{Unaudited)
31-Dec-13
1000

W8

59
2,840

&7

6420
2,840
2,850
4r350

2,117
6,507
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SHARE CAPITAL

{Unaudited)
31-Dec-ag

50,000,010 fully paid ordinary shares

{Audited)
31-Mar-1s
000
50,000

(Unaudited)
31-Dec-13
so00

50,000

The Bank issued 1o ordinary shares an g October 2008 and 50,000,000 ardinary shares on 7 February 2011 All
ardinary shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and any profits on winding up: Shares do not

have a parvalue,

Liquidity risk

The Bank holds the following financial assets for the purpose of managing liquidity risk:

(Unaudited)
as at
31-Dec-14

£000
Cash §3
Due from other financial instritutions (call deposits) 7,308
Due from other financial institutions (short term
deposits) 10,000
Balance due from refated parties 3,283
Total liguid assets 20,684

CAPITALADEQUACLCY

(Audited)
asat
31-Mar-1g
£000
b5

7,640
9,000

2,742
19,447

{(Unaudited)
asat
I1-Dec-13
Lo00
125

3,060

7,000

2,850

13,029

The following capital adequacy information is disclosed In relation to the Bank and is derived inaccordance with the
conditions of registration relating to capital adequacy. For the purpose of the conditions of registration, capital
requirements and ratios are calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Capital Adequacy
Framework (BS52A) dated September 2013 and is disclesed under the Basel il framework in accordance with
Schedule g of the Order. The information for the comparative period is calcolated based on the Base| Il framework

Capital and Capital ratics

‘Tier1 capital
Common Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") Capital
lsswed and fully paid up ordinary share capital
Retaned earmings
Less deductions from CET1 capitol

Deferred tax assets

“Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Additional Tier 2 ("AT2") capital
Tier 1 Capital

‘Tier 2 Capital
Total capital

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

(Unaudited)
31-Dec-14
$000

50,000

(Bs}

51,297

53,297

53,297

23



Notes to financial statements
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

31-Dec-14 31-Mar-1g. 31-Decaay

Capital ratios and solo capital adequacy et il o]
Common equity Tier 1 capital ratio G1% eTL] 112%
Tier 1 capital ratio g1 4% 212%
Total capital ratio g1 4% 132%

{Unaudited) {Audited) (Unaudited)

g . : 31-Dec-ag 31-Marag 31-Dec-az

Minimum ratio requirement R ios scc0]

Comman equity Tler 1 capital ratio 5% £.5% & 5%

Tierz capnal ratio 6% 5% 6%

Total capitai ratio 2% T B

{Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

. 31-Dec-1g 31-Mar-1g 31-Dec-a3y

SOarTiY 000 $000 $o00

Bufferratio 834 B6% 1045

Bufferratio requirement .50 2.5% 2.6%

The Bank has go,coo,010 fully paid ordinary shares (tier one capital) issued at NZs$1 per share. Bank of India is the
sole shareholder. Each share confers on the holder the right to:

a  onevote ona poll at a meeting of the Bank on any resclution

b. theright to equal share in dividends authorised by the board

¢ therightto anegual share inthe distribution of the surplus assets of the Bank.

d. Thereis no capital Instrument eligible for phase out

Credit Risk

The Bank's credit nisk exposure is denved in accerdance with the Reserve Bank document ‘Capital adeguacy
framework (Standardised Approach)’ (BSzA) dated Septemberaoiz

Riskweightad
Total Riskweight axposure MEnimum
On Balance Sheet exposures asat ‘mdfﬁ?;: P“"‘:}:‘"‘“‘
credit ri requirement

31 December 2014 mitigatian
s000 s000 ’::::
. Unaud

Unaudited Unaidited Unaudited
Coshand goid bullion g3 ol . .
Barfks 1g,12¢ 20% 3,825 306
: 5o% o o
_ 2,566 100% 2,966 by )
Residential mortgages not past due: LVE upto Bo% 21,104 15 7,418 5493
LVR sRo% & upto godh B, 444 sodh 3,224 258
LVR excesds golh . 5 - .
Corporate Loans 28,804 100% 28,805 3,305
Cther assets 1,514 100% 2,584 121
Tatal o balance shuet exposure Bo,i50 57,756 3,820

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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As at 31 December 2004 (Unaudited)
Interast rate risk

Foregn currency risk

Equity risk

Total

Bank of india [New Zealand] Limited

Ayerage risk
waight

Unpudited

B5%

Risk weighted
BEXDOSUrE O
implied risk

weighted
EXPOsSUre
£000
Unaudited
48,840
4,673
3,978
56,489

Implied risk
Weighted
Exposure

$o00
Unaudited
1,885

1

2,976

Risk weighred
exposure

Hroo

Unaudited

1,084

Capital requirement

$000
Unaudited
3.907

74

138

4,519

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

$oo0

Unaudited

m
7

238

Minkmum Pillar 2
capital
reguirement

Unaudited

87

Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December zo14
7 CAPITALADEQUACLY {continued)
Off Balance
Sheet exposures Total Credit convarsion factor Credit equivalent
a5 at 31 exposure armaLnt
December zo14
$000 So00
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Other
A commitrments
where original
atuchtyle 3342 50% 1,67
mare tharan
'year
4 Total off
halance sheet 31,367 1,671
EMposure
Credit risk mitigation
Mo on or off-balance sheet exposures are covered by eligible collateral, guarantees or credit derivatives.
Torzl capltsl requirensale
Total expasure
after credit risk
mitigation
fo00
As at 31 December 2014 (Unaudited) Unaudited
Total credit risk + equity risk 83,493
Operauonal risk mifa
- Market risk nfa
Total 8z 460
* Market risk end of period capital charges
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

CAPITALADEQUACY (continued)
Market risk peak end-of-day capital charges

{Unaudited)
‘For period ended 31 December 2014

interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk
Equity risk

Total

Implied risk
Weighted
Exposure

000

Unaudited

2,589
94

3,083

Aggregate
Capital
Charge

So00

Unaudited

239
B

47

The above capital charges are derived in accardance with the Conditions of Registration relating to
capital adequacy and the Reserve Bank document entitled "Capital Adequacy Framework”

{Standardised Approach) (BS2A) dated Septerber 2013,

Peak end-of-day capital charges are caleutated vsing the Bank's shareholders’ equity at the end of

the year

Operational risk

Total oparational
mplied risk u’:;:;ﬂ:t'
Weighted
Exposure
£006 £000
(Unaudited) Unaudited Unaudited
For period ended 32 December 2014
i Dperational risk 4673 374
Residential mortgage by loan-to-valuation ratio (LVR)
Exceeds 8ot and
LVR Excaods
LVR range S e not gobé o Tatal
Unaudited Unaudited Unnudited Unaudited
value of exposures asat
‘31 December 2014
On-balanceshest 21,194 6,449 - 27,643
Off-balance sheet 1,805 7 E 1,805
Total 22,999 6,445 E 29,448

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

CAPITALADEQUACY (comtinued)

Capital requirements for other matenal risks

The ather material risks that the Bank has identified are described below:
Reputation Risk: The risk of potential damage tothe Bank from a deterloration of reputation,

Transfer Risk: The risk that funds in forelgn currencies cannot be transferred out of a country, The risk relates to
specific explicit govemnment restrictions or simply depleted fareign exchange funds in the non-industrial countries of
Africa, Asia, Latin America and Central and Eastemn Europe

Strategic [ Business Risks: Current and prospective impact on earmings or capital arising from adverse business
decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack of responsiveness to industry changes

Tax Risk: Risk arising from adverse changes in relevant taxation laws, fallure to correctly identify implications of
existing @xation laws or breaches of tax laws.

Legal Risk: Risk arising from legal proceedings or failure to legally enfarce s contractusl armngement relating to the
Bank's activities

The Bank has reviewed these otherrisks and de not believe any individual risk as being material and requiring a
capital allocation - The Bank will review this allocation methodology every reporting period in line with industry
practice 25 this area evolves overtime,

The Bank measures the primary risks and its overall minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio in accordance with the Resarve
Bank document entitled *Capital Adégquacy Framework” (Standardised Approach) {B524) dated September

2013. The Bank’s approach to assess capital adequacy recognises the impertance of using both quantitative
technigues and qualltative assessment fmanagement |udgement In arriving at a final measure of risk. As part of its

angoing capital planning and budgeting processes management also develops a range of scenarios as a basis for
identifying plausible severe loss events and changes in market ¢conditions and measures | quantifies the potemtial
financialimpacts (direct and indirect) on the Bank's capital adequacy for the foreseeahle future {2-3 years),

Seniormanagement of the Bank is respansitle for the capftal planning and budgeting process and isrequired to

perform angoing calculation of Capltal Adequacy Ratio and report this to the Board of Directors on a reguliar basis.
The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsibile to momitor the Capital Adequacy Ratio on a regular basis,

Capital ratios of the ultimate parent bank

Atio
September ~ At3a March
2014 2014
CET 1 capital ratic 6.85% 6.54%
Tierone capital ratio H.02% 7.56%
Total capital ratic 11.50% 10.76%

The ultimate parent bank s Bank of India, domiciled in India. Figures are taken from Bank of India's Financial Results
for the period ended 30 September 2014 from its website. The above ratios are derived in accordance with the
Capital ‘Adeguacy Framework (Basel ll) as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines effective 31 March 2008,

Bank of India is required by the REI to hald minimum capital at least equal to that specified under the Basel ||
(standardised) approach. At balance date (l.e_ 30 September 2014) Bark of India was in compliance with the
reguirements imposed

Bank of India {New Zealand) Umited



Notes to financial statements
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Bank of India has published piliar three disclosure information on the implementation of the Basel || capital adequacy
frarmewark on its website and can be found at htap:iwww. barkofindia.co n.

ASSETQUALITY

The Bank has no past due and impaired assets, individually impaired assets, and Individual credit impairment
allowances as at 31 December 2014 (2033: $nil).

Allowance forimpairment losses

Residential Ontalance Otheron
sheat
As at 31 December 2014 (Unaudited) martgege corporate e okl
loans exposures
BXpOSUres
soo0 So00 Soo00 So00
‘Collectively assessed provisions
Balance at 2.April 201 106 =7 - 133
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 5 7 . 8z
ther movements . . a
Balance at 31 December 2ony 111 104 . 315
Er'ld.i'uid:l.ri"'gl' assessed provisions
Balante at 2 April 2014 = . = =
Charge to staternent of comprehensive income . . -
Other movements . . = -
Balance at 32 December 2004 . ' -
Total aliowance for impairment losses 131 204 F 315
Residential n ba::;i' Otheraon
As at 32 December 2053 (Unaudited) mortgage corporate balance sheet Total
|oans EXPOSUTes
EXpOSUres
s000 so000 soo0 So00
Collectively assessed provisions
Balance st 1 April 2013 Ba 36 . 138
Charge ta statement of camprehensive income 23 72 . 95
Dther movements £
Balance at 31 December 2013 10§ 128 E 233
individually assessed provisions
Balance @t 2 April 2013
Charge to staternent of comprehensive income - -
Other movements . .
Balance at 31 Decamber 3013 -
Total allowance for impairment losses 105 338 = 233

Bark of India (New Zealand) Limited
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ASSETQUALITY (continued)
Impairment losses on loans and advances

On balance

@ §

Residential Other on balance
sheet corporate i

mortgage loans exposures sheet exposures

L1 Fo E030
Collectively assessed provisions § 7T
Individually assessed provisions - -

Other movenents -

Balance at 31 December 2014 5 77
Collectively assessed provisions EE] 7a

Individually assessed provisions 5 . .
Other movements . =
Balance at 31 December 2013 2y 72

The Bank assesses on a monthly basis whether objective ewidence of impairment exists indiidually for loans and
advances. If the Bank determines that no ebjective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed loans and
advances, loans and advances with similar credit risk charactenstics are grouped and assessed collectively for
impairment.

The Bank used loss rates fram the Recerve Bank of India directives to calculate its collectively assessed provisions.
This is because the Bank has no history of losses to calculate its own loss rates. The Bank has assessed these loss
rates as appropriate for the credit risk of its loans and advances.

I there 15 objective evidence that animpairment an loans and advances has been \ncurred, the amount of the charge
is measured as the difference between the loans and advances' carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the loans and advances’ original effective interest rate.

The Bank does not have any financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss as at and for the period.
ended 31 December 2014 (2013 $nil), As such, there were o changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit
risks that have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income for the peniod ended 31 December, 2014
(zo23: snil).

There was no aggregate amount of undrawn balances on lending commitments to counterparties for whom drawn
balances are classified as individually impaired as at and for the period ended 31 December, 2004 {2013 snil),

There were no other assets under administration as st and for the year ended 31 December zo14 (2013: #nll).

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

Loansand . Fin?ncisd
) A liabilities at Total
Az at 32 Decamber 2004 (Unaudited) receivables PRSI -
S000 000 S000.
Assers
‘Cash 83 - EE
Balance due from related parties 3,283 = 3,283
Pue from other financial Institutions 18, 5ol - 18, 8c8
Loans and advances 56,399 : 56,3090
Interest receivable 2945 = 45
Total financial assets 78,878 - 78,6878
Mon-financial assets 1,373
‘Total assets Bo,150
Liabilities
Balance due to related parties : 165,189 15,18
Deposits and other borrowings - 13,218 23,218
Other liabilites . 361 363
Total financial liabilities - 28,768 28,768
Man-financial liahilities
Total liahilities 28,768
hkndand Fin?ﬂﬁﬂ
: liahilities at Total
~hs at 31 December 20a3Unavditad) receivables srrinitiand cout
000 000 000
Assets
Cash 120 - 1159
Balance due from related parties 2,840 - 2,840
Due fram other financial institutions 10,061 = 10,081
. Loans and advances 49,16 . 49,164
[terest recenvable 235 - 238
Tatal financial assets 62,419 ‘ 62,425
Mon-financial assets 1,430
Total assets 63,830
Liabilities
Balance dueto related parties . 6,507 6,507
Deposits and pther borowings = B,250 b,250
Crither llabiinies . 20 2040
Total financial iabilities - 12,957 12,957
Mon-financidl liabiities
Total liabilities 12,857

Bank of India {Mew Zealand) Limited
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value of financial Instruments

Carrying Estimated Fair

As at 31 Decernber zo1g (Wnaudited) Amounts Value
fooo soo0
Financial assets
Cash -k 93
Balance due fram related parties 3,283 3,283
‘Due from other financia| institutions 18,808 18,808
Loans andt advances 56,359 56,646
Interest receivable g 2895
‘Total financial assets 78,878 79,425

Financial liabilities

‘Balance due to related parties 16,18y 16,184
Depaosits and other borrowings 13,218 13,718
Qther kabilities 361 383

‘Total financial llabilities 18,768 28,768

Carrying Estimated Falr

As ot 31 December 2013 (Unaudized) Amounts Value
2000 00D

'Financial assets

Cash 11g 129!
| Balance due from related parties 2,80 3,8i0
| Due frome pther fingncisl Institutions 1m,061 10,061
Loans and advances 40,164 48,473
[rterest recevable 2235 225]
Total financial assets b2,418 62,728
Financial iabilities

Balance duetorelated parties 6,507 G5Oy
Deposits and othar borrowings B,250 6,150
[ Other liabilities 00 200
Total financial liabilities 12,957 12,957

Fairvalue estimation

CQuoted market prices, when available, are used as the measure of fair values for financial instruments. However, for
some ofthe Bank’s financial instruments, quoted market prices do not exist. For such financial instruments, fair
yalues presented are estimates derived using present value or other market accepted valuation techniques, These
techniques involve uncertainties and are affected by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial Instruments, discount rates, astimates of future cash flows, future expected loss
experiance and other factars, Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values.

The fair value estimates were determined by application of the methods and assumptions described below.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Uimited
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FINAMCIALINSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fairvalue estimation

Cash
For cash assets, the carrying ameunt |s equivalent te the fairvalue as thay are highly liguid. For short term liguid
assets, estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices.

Bolance due from other financial institutions
These are call and short term deposits with other financial Institutions which are relatively liquid and therefore
carrying amount is equivalent to fairvalue.

Advances to customers

Forvanable rate loans and advances, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fairvalue, For fived rate loans
and advances, fairvalues have been estimated vsing a discounted cash flow model with reference to marketinterest
rates, prepayment rates and rates of estimated credit losses.

Other financial assets
Included In this categary are interest recejvables and nther short term receivables. For these balances the carrying
value is considered to approximate the fair values, as they are short terrn in nature or are receivable on demand,

Deposits by customers

For fixed term deposits by customers, fair valuss have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model with
reference to marketinterest rates, For other deposits by customers, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of
fairvalue.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss anising as a result of the diminution in credit quality of the bomower or counterparty and
tha risk that the borrower or counterparty will default on contractual repayments under and advance.

As at 3z December 2014, the Bank deposited its funds with financial institutions with a credit rating from Standard &
Poors' of AA- (2013 AA-) orwith related parties. The Bank has established a Credit Commuttes that specifically
oversees and co-ordinates the Bank's credit risk management functions. The Credit Committes has primary
responsibility foridentifying, measuring and monitering the Bank's exposure to credit risk. The Credit Committee
reports to the Board on credit risk on & quarterly basis

RISK MANAGEMENT

The credit policy has been set by the Credit Committee and approved by the Board. Bank officers seek Credit
Committes approval before deviating from any lending guideline or policy. Credit approvst authorities have beer
tdelegated by the Board to senior executives of the Bank. Compliance with these palicies is monitared by the Credit
Committee and reported o the Board,

Credi i |
The Bank assesses risk at the time of appraisal of the loan using its rating mnodel for various types of borrowers. A
business portfolio s assessed on a risk rated basis and a retail portfolio on a scoring basis

Credit i
#s a means of avoiding cancentration of credit risk, the Bank sets cellings in relation to single/fgroup borrowers;
unsecured borrowers and with respect to each industry sector

Market risk
Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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tiarket nsk is the nsk that exposure to price movements in financial instrurments, arising as a result of changes in
market variables, will resultin a loss suffered by the Bank. The Bank has established a Risk Management Committee
thatis responsible for, among other things, identifying, measuring and monitanng the Bank's exposure to market
nsk The Risk Management Comnuttee meets on a guarterly basis and recelves quidance and techmical support from
staffin the Bank of Indla head office. The relevant process for each category of market risk Is as follows:

Interest rate risk
The Bank undertakes interest rate sensitivity gap analysis an a quarterly basis on & contractual basis as a means of monitoring
interest rate nsk. Shortterm interest rate risk is calculated using the Net interast Earmings st Risk tool

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes analysis on material open foreign exchange positions through ensuring foreign exchange
deposits are matched by corresponding foreign exchange balances held with financial institutions as a means to
monitar farelgn exchange risk.

Equity risk

The Bank does not have any equity risk.
iguidity ri

Liquidity risk occurs when an institution is unable to fulfil its commitment in the time when the commitment falls

due. The Risk Management Cornmittee is responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring liguidity risk
affacting the Bank.

The Bantk monitors its gne-week and one-month mismatch ratios and its core funding ratio on a datly basis to ensure
compliance with regulatory requiremnents.

Operational risk
Operational nisk Is the nsk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed intermal processes, people and systems or from
external events;

The Bank's senior management is responsible for implementing the operational nsk management mitiatives
formulated by the Board. The Bank's sénior management meets monthly to analyse changes or trends in respects of
aperational risk. The Bank's senior management may make recommendaticns to the Board on strategies that may
Improve the Bank's operational risk profile,

Capital adequacy

The Board and senior management undertake capital planning, in accordance with the Bank's internal capital
adequacy assessment policy, As part of the capital planning process, the Board reviews;

¢ Thecurrent capital requirements of the Bank;

*  Thetargeted and sustainable capital in terms of business strategy and risk appetite; and

*  Future capital planning [with a three year outlook).

The capital plan is revised on an annyal basis or more regularly if necessary, to meet the Bank's ohligations under
Baze| ||l For further information, see Note 15.

i k's risk manageme m
There have been no reviews conducted in respect of the Bank's risk management systems since Inauguration,

rnalaudit fun
The Bank utilises an internal sudit function as & control measure to enable senior management of the Bank to
monitor and review the Bank on an ongoing basis. The internal audit function of the Bank is part of the Bank of
India's policy Lo eénsure that all Bank of India branches and subsidiaries have appropriate systems and procedures in
Bank of India [New Zealand) Limited 33
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place and comply with all applicable home and host country regulatiens, Specifically, the Bank is subject toa
monthly compliance review that is undertaken by senior management of the Bank. The purpose of this review is to
check constant and concurrent compliance with all systems and procedures by the Bank. The Bank of India's head
office internal audit tearr has not reviewed the Bank for this financial year as part of its overseas subsidianes rotation
ot mternal audits.

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umited
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The following tabile breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the
industry and geography area of the Bank's main counterparties.

Analysis of on balance sheet credit exposure by industry (Unaudited) ({Unaudited)
31-Decag 3a-Dec-13
£000 5000
Fersonal & Other Senices 238 A44
Property & Business Services 34,133 24,905
Finance, Investrment & Insurance zé.,au? 14 785
Rerall & Wholesale Trade 2,758 3533
Hospitality 1,107 -
Health & Community Services 400
Other 1,098 2,302
Househaolds 14,149 14,569
Frinting & Related Activities 1,115 1,160
Subtotal 78,Bog 62,208
Allowance for impairment losses {315) (233)
Total on-balance sheet credit exposures 74,480 62,065
Analysis of on balance sheet exposures by geographic area (Unsudited) (Unavdited)

31-Dec-1g 31-Dec-13

$000 fooo
Mew Zealand 75,207 59,225
hsia 3244 2,815
America 39 25
Total on-balance sheet credit exposures 78,490 62,065
Off balance sheet credit exposures gbesag C e

£000 S000:
Loan commitrnents 3,347 4,218
Total off-balance sheet credit exposures 3,342 4,218

Analysis of off balance sheet credit exposure by industry 3-Decay  32-Decay

5000 S000
Property & Business Services 1,852 2,607
Persanal & Cther services [
Finance, Investment & Insurance - 143
Retail & Wholesale Trade
Other 5
Households 48g 1,462
Printing & Related Activities
Total off-balance sheet credit exposures 3342 L8

Bank of India (Mew Zealand) Limited
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE TO INDIVIDUAL COUNTERPARTIES

Credit exposure is calculated an the basis of actua!l exposure net of any amounts offset and any individual
credit impairment allowances. The credit exposure information excludes credit exposures to connected
persons, bank counterparties and the central government of any country with a fong term credit rating of A-
or Az or above, or its equivalent.

Tharewere no individual bank and non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group hasan aggregate
credit exposure that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity as at 31 December
zoa4{ 2013 nil).

Thera were no individual bank and non-bank counterparties which the Bank's Banking Group hasa peak end-
of-day aggregatecredit exposure that equals or exceeds 10% of the Bank's Banking Group's equity for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil)

COMMITMENTS

Caprtal Commitmeants
#s at3a December 2014, the Bank does not have any commitments for capital expenditure. {2013: snil).

Dperating lease commitments
Ciperating leases relate to the Bank's premises and motor vehicles.

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited)

331-Dec-as 31-Mar-14 31-Dec-13

5000 5000 so00

Mot longer than one year 263 28g 242
Longer than one year and not longer than five years 667 773 Bi3,
Longer than five years 413 501 530
Total 1,343 1,563 1,635

INSURANCE BUSINESS AND NON-FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
The Bank does not conduct any insurance business, securitisation, funds management, other fiduciary activities, and
marketing and distribution of insurance products,

SEGMENTINFORMATION
The Bank operates in a single segment, predominantly in the banking and finance industry in New Zealand,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Bank has no material contingent liabilities as 1 31 December 2014, (2013 snil),

SUBSEQUENTEVENTS
There were no significant subsequent events arising up to the date of signing of these accounts.

Bank of india [Mew Zealand) Limited 36
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Credit Ratings Scales

Long Term Debt Ratings

Highest quality | Extremely strong capacity ta pay Interest and principal
High quality / Very strong

Upper medium grade [ Strong

Medium grade (lowestinvestment grade) | Adeguate

Predaminately speculative [ Less near term vulnerability to default
Speculative, low grade | Greater vulnerability

Poor to default [ identifiable vulnerability

Highest specuiations

Lowest guality, no interest

Payment in default, In arréars— guastionahle value

Standard pitira
IBCA and Poor's
AbA AAA
Al AA
M A
BEB Baa
BB Ba
B B
cce Caa
€ Ca
C C
¥}

Fitch

AAA

EBE
BB

ccc
£c
C
D

Credit ratings between AA - CCC by Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings may be modified by the addition ofa plusor
minussign (signalling higherand lower end of the scale respectively), Moody's Investar Services applies  numeric
modifies 1,2 and 3 to sach generic rating classification with a 1 indicating a higher rating end a 3 [ndicating a lower

rating within that generic rating category,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Umited
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Appendix 2

Condithons of reglitration for Bank of India [ew 2ealand) Umited These conditions of regitration spply o and aftes 1uly 2014

The registration of Remk of intls (New 2eatand) Limited ("the bank™} as a registered bank & suliject to.the following condition

L That-
1] the Total capital ratio of the banking group Is nof less than 83%;
(i} the Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group & mot less than 6%;
{c} the Common Eguity Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group & not léss than 4.55%;
14 the Torl capital of the Banking group i ot Sss thar $30 miltan; and
iel the proces in Subgart 2H of the Reserve Bank of New Traland document: “Capltsl Adeguacy Framewerk (Standardised

Approsch)” [B524) dated July 2014 1s fosowed for the recogniben snd repayment of caphal,

For the purposas of this candition of ragistration. capltal. the Telal capital ratio, the Tier 1 capial ratie, and the Comman
Eguity Tier 1 capital ratio must be calculated in sccordance with the Reserve Bank of Kow Zesland document: “Cipital
Adequacy Framewnd (Standardised Apocoach]® (B52A) dated Jily 2018

1A That-
[a} tne bank has an invernal capial adequarcy assessment process [YCAART) that accerds with the requifements sef out in the
document “Guidelires on & bank's internal capital adequaty assessment process (TICAAR') |85232) dated Owrember 2007,

L] unther s ICAAP the hank identifles and messunes its "ather moterial fiks” defined us all materisl fisks of the banking
group that dee not explicitly coplurod in the catculation of the Canmman Equity Tier L capad ratio, the Ther 1 capaal ratio
and the Total capial ratio under the requmemanis s&t out in the docurment "Capital Adecuacy Framewoy [Standardined
Approach]" (8524 dated July 2014 ; am)

3] the bank determines an internal capital Wlocstion for each Wentified and measured "other materil risk”
18 That i# the buffer ratio of the banking group s 25% o less, the bank st
la) according ta the following table, limi the dggregate dutdbutions of the hank's earnings to the percentage imit to

getributions that corresponds to the banking group’s bufter rtio;

Banking group's buffer ratio Percentage limit ta distributions of the Bank's eamings
0% - D.625% 0%
0625 - L25% i
1328 - LB75% 4o
»1.B75. 155 BOW

ol prepare & capital plan $o restore thie hanking groug’s buffer ratio 1o above 2 5% within any timedtams deteomined by the

Reserve Bank for revtacing the buffer ratio; and

Ie}
hanvee the cagital plan approved by the Ressrve Bank Far the purposes &f this condition of registration,-

huffer ratio, “distributions®, and "earnings” have the same meaning as in fart 3-of the Resarve Bank of New Zealand docurmint:
“Capital Adiguacy Framewark (Sandardived Approach)” (BS2A) dated July 2014
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e Thiat the hanking group does not condect any non-lihancial actwvities that in aggregate are material relative to its total
BctiES

I this condition of registration, the meaning of “material® (§ hated on generally aceepted sceounting practice.
3, Thiat the baring groug’s insurance business s not greater than 1% of s torel consolidated assets.

For the putposes of This condition of registration; the Banking group's insarance business i the sasm of e following smeunts for
ceititles In the barking group: '

{a}

if the bBusiness of an entity predominaniiy consists of insurunce business and the entity is-not 3 subsidiary ef anather
prtity in the hanking grocp whose busmess predominantly consists of insurance businesy, the amount af the maeence
business ta sum is e total consolidated assets of the group headed by the entity; and

-1} I the entity conduets insurance business and lts Huskness does not oredominantly consist of Infurance business and the
erity 18 ot a subsediary of another entity in the banking group whose ousINess predominantly consists of imsrance
bubiniews, the amount of the (nsurance business to sum s the totel llabliivies relating to the eptings insurance business
plis the eguity retainad by the entity to meet the salenty o financtal soundness needs of 1S Insurance business.

In determining the total amount of the banking group™s Ingurince budines:

{2} all emaunts must redate UG on balance sheaat items andy, and must comply with genarally accepted sccounting practice;
and
] I products ar sssets of which an [nzurance business s comarisad a%e contain & non-insurance compornent. the whale of

suth products o assety-muost be condidered part of the imurance business.

For the purposes of this condibien of registration,-
Insurance business means the undertaling af assurnmption of latsiliby o an insurer under a eentract of insirance

|msarer and “contract of isurance” lave the sama meaning as provided i= sections & and 7 of the (msurance [Prudentlal Supervisian)
Act 2010

4, That the aggregate credit expasures [of § nor-tapital rature and net of any ablowances for impaliment] of the hankisg
Eroup to &l connected persans do not exceed the rating- contingent Umit cutlingd in the following matric:

Credit rating of the bank1 Connected exposure limit (% of the Banking Group's Ther 1 capital)
ARSAE2 and above
AdfAad
AxfAl
Afhz
Afh3
BEB+/Baal and bhefow

FEEEFS

Winsim the ratiog-contingent Umit, credit exposures [of & ten-capital mature and ret of any abowances far impakrment) to non-hani
connected persans shall not excesd 15% of the bankeng group's Tier 2 capital

Far the purpares of this condition of registration, complience with the rating-tontingent connected exposure limit is-determined in
accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zeatand docurment antithed "Connected Expomures Policy” [B58] anted ity 2014.

5 That exposures 1o conmected persons ane nat-on mose favourable terrms (e.g. as relates to such matters as crediy
assessment, tanar, interest rates, smorfuaton scheduies and requirement for coltaters!) fan cormesponding expesrss
112 ran-conneched persomd.
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That the bank complies with the foliowing corporate gowernants requirements:

EI thie baard of the bank must have at brast five directors:

(b the majesity of the Banrd MErnBars Must DE HON-EXacLvE i ectors;

ic} a1 fuast half of the bosrd members must b independent directors;

idi on gltereate director,

i fora nor-esetulse directer must be for-sxecutive; and

i fur an independent director must be independent;

(e] at bepst inall of the indebendent diractors of the bank must be ardinanly resigent in Mew Zealand;

I the chairpersore of the board of the ank must be independent; and

[ the bank's comstitidion mist net beclude any pravision permitting & director, when sxercising powers or performing,

dutiss 26 & direchor, 1o st other than in whit he or she bellaves 5 the best interests of the campany [ e the bank)

For the purposes of this conditian ol registration, "Aoo-exscuiive” and “ndependint’ heve the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank
af New Fealand document entitied “Corporate Governance” [(B514) dated July 2014

7 That fig appointment of any director, chisf executii afficer, or sdecutive who reoorts o is accountabli dissctly to the
chief executive afficer, s made in respect of the bank unless:

1 Thiis tabie wses the eating scales of Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ronngs and Mondy's investors Service. (Fech Ratings’ scale b
identical fo Standard & Poac's ]

fa] the Reserve Bank nas been suppliea with a copy of the cumiegium viae of the progosed ippointee; and

b} thie Resarve Bank has aclviced that it has ne chjectionto that appointment

B That a person must fot be appointed a3 chakrperson of tne board of the bank unfess:

fad thie Reserve Bank has been supslied with # copy of the curticuliem vitae of the propoted appointes; mmd

() the Reservie Bank Has advised that it has no objection to that appointment.

3 That the bank has @ board audit commities, or other separate board committer covermg Fullit ratters, that mests the
Tollesang reguiresments:

Ia} thimandate of the committee must Include: ensuring the integrity of the bank’s financal controls, reparing systems and
indernal awdit standards;

(-1 the cammittes muoss have at least three members;

(e every member of Uve cammities must be & non-executive director af the boik;

{d) themajority of the memibers of the cormmittes mush b independent; s

(&) the chairpersan &f the sommiites must be independant and must not e the chaisperson of the bank.

far the purposes of this condition of registratimn, “ron-executive” and “independent™ have the same menning as in the Reserye Bank
af New Pealand document entitled “Corporate Govermance™ [B514) dated luly 2014,

10 Thiat 2 substantial proportion of the bank's business is conducted in und from New fastand.
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Thiat the banking group comphiss with the foliswing auantitstive reguiremants for liquidity- risk management:
the one-week mismatch ratioof The Banking groun is not less than Teng per cent a7 the end of each Busness day;
The ane=month mismateh rato of e bonkng group s not less then sero percent at the snd af sach business diy; nnd

the anpyear cors Funding ratia of the Harking group s not |ess than 75 per cent at the ehd of pach business day,

Faor the purpeses of this condition of regstration, the ranos idenoiied must be calculuted In sccordance with the Reserve Bank of New
Tealind docarments entitied "Uguidity Palicy™ [BS13) dated July 2014 and "Liguidity Palicy Annee Liguld Adsets” (B5134) dated
Elecarnbar 20011,

12

{a

[b]

i}

13

That thi bank has an mternal framewark for iguiday risk management that & adequate 1 ihe bank's view for rmanaging
tthe bank's liquidity rik af & prodest level, snd that, in partiular

i cledrly documented and comminicated 12 all thase in the organisation with responsibility for managing lquidiey and
liguidity gk

idgritlfies respansibiliy for approval, oversight and implarmentation of the framewark and poficis or iquidity risk
management;

\dentidias the principal matheds that this back wil wke for measaring, manioring and cantraliing Rgusiy risk and

commdery thi material sources of stress that the bigek might fice, and prepanes the bank to manage stress througha
contingency funding plan,

That no moes thsn 10% of tond] assats may be beneficidly swned by &SPV, For the purposes of this condltion.:

potal paets mears @il aset of the Banking group plus any assets hatd by any SPY that ane aot incheded in the banking group’s-assets:

5PV means a person:

{a]
L]

I}

to wham any membar of 1he banking groun has soid, assigned, or otherwee transfemed 2ny asset,
witia has grantad, of fray Frant, 3 security imterest iy itcassets for the benelit of any holder of any cavered bond; and

wia carries on o other business except. for that necessary ar Incidental to guaranies this obligations af sy member of
the bankéng group under 8 cavered bond:

covered band means 3 getit sacurity Bswed by iy member ef the banking group, for which repaymant ts holdess is guaranteed by o
5Py, and investors retalr an unsecured cldim on the isauer.

14
{a)

iy

-]

1

Thiat-
no member of the banking group may give affect to a gualifying scquisition or business combination that mests the
notiticasion threshald, and does not mest the non-objection threshold, unless:

{he bk R notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acquisition or business eombination and at least 10
working davs have passed; and

at the srme of netilying the Reserve Bank of the Intended scquisition se business combinizion, the bank provided the
Regerve Bank with the information reguirad undier the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand Banking Suparvision Handbook
docurmant “Significant Arquisitions Policy” (B315) dated Decernber 2011; and

o mermber of the banking group may give effect 1o 8 quoliying 3cquishion of DUsINess ComDination THAT meets the nan-
objection threshold uniess:

tha bank has notiled the Reseree Bank i writing of the intended acquisitin of business comhbination:
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{i at tha time of nptifying the Reserve Bank of the intended scquisinon or Yusiness combination, the bank provided the
fesorve Bank with the information required under the Reserve Bank of Mew Zealand Banking Superwsion Handbook
discurnent "Significant Acquisitions Policy” [B515) dated Deosmber 2011, and

[ the Reserve Bank has grven tre bank a notice of non-abjection 1o the significant acqusition or business combinaton;

For the purposes of this condition of registration, "guaiying atquisition or business cortbination”, "notification threshold” ang "non-
nojection threthald” have the same menning as in the Resarve Bank of Mew Zealind Barking Supsrvision Handbook document
“Significant Acgesliitions Poliny® [B515) dated Decemnber 2011,

15 That, for @ loan-te-vilumnon messurmment perod, (he total of the bank's qualifying new mortgage knding amounts mus
ot for residential proportios with 8 loan-to-wsluation ratio of mors than 208 excasd 10% of the total of the gualifying
nmw mortgage lending amounts arising in the losn-to-valualion measuroment pericd

15 Thiat the Bank must not mrke 4 residemtial mortgage loan unless 1he terms ard conditions of the fnon contract or the
terms and gonditions for an associated martgage require that & borrower cbiein the bank's agreement before the
Borrower gan grant to another person a charge over the resrdential propemy used a3 seouny for The isan.

17, Thit the bank must not permit 8 borrmwer to grant @ change in favour of snother person over a residential property used
8% secority for & residentia| mortgags loan unless the surm of the lending secured by the charge and the loan value for the
reaiddntial mortgage logn would not excesd B0% of the property vahee of thr residentlal property when the lending
secueed by the chatge is diawn down.

18 That the bank muit not provide a residential morigage fean if the residentlisl propefty to be morigaged to the bank as
secuatty for the residomtial morgage loan & subsect 1o a charge m favour of amathor person gndess the total amount of
credlt secuted by the residemil property would not exceed B of the property wallie when the residential mortgage
loan |5 deaven down

19, Thatthe bank must not act a3 broker or arrange lor 8 member o] |t Banking group 1o provede & residentiol mortgage
Toam,

| thede conditione of reglstration "banking group” means Bank of ndia (Mew Zealand) Limmited (a6 reporting entity) and all other entities
ineluded n tha groug as defimed n - section &1) of the Fnascial Markets Conduet Aot 2003 for the purposes of Part 7of that Aty

Gernerally accepted accounting practice has the same meaning as i fection B of the Finencial Reporting Act 2013,

| conditions of registration 1510 19~

loah-to-valimtion ratio, "loan value”, "progerty value”, "qualifying new mortgage lending smount” and “residental morigage loan”
hawit The samme misaning a5 in the Reserve Bank of New Zealznd document entitied “Framework for Restrictions on High-LvRt
Residential Morigage Lending” (B519) dated July 2014:

lan-te-walmtion measurement getlod means a period of 814 calindar monthe ending on the last day of the sieh calendar menth, the
first of which ends an the last day of March 2014
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Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited

L

|} L]
o
. ~in
THIS DEED Is made on | £ JAnwia 2011
BY
(1] BANK OF INDIA a body corparate consbbuled urdes e Banking Companies (Acguisition &
Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1870, having s Head Office ot Star House, T-5, G Block, Bandra-
K_ln'il Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbal, India (hereinafier referved 1o as the "Bank™),
AND o E
=g
{2} BOl (NEW ZEALAND) LIMITED & Company incorporatad in New Zealand having s mniﬂmeﬁ'
office at Level 18, PricewatarhouseCoopors Towsr, 188 Cuay Binset Auckiand, Mew Iuluﬁ
[heseinaher referred {0 85 "BolNZ") §=
=
IN FAVOUR OF g
(3} EACH CREDTOR OF BOINZ a5
gEELTY
WHEREAS 1 3=§ E Z
a
A} BOINZ is 8 wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank and set up for the purpose of doing the busicg} L2
af banking In Mew Zesland a3 g z
- L
- 3  Thea Bank enfers into thin Deed of Gummanise for the purpoee of guamntasing the obilgaficns of s g FE
subeidiary, BalNZ, ta the extent provided doc by the tarms of this Deed. E EE
1.  DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION E §§ g
i 1.1 Inthis Doed and in ihe Reclals, uness the conted otherwiss requires: ii‘ :g
“Muhorised Officer” meons, wiore a Craditar ik 3 Pesan olier than o catural " ﬁ
or seormary of that Person or a person duly aulhorised by the Creditor undes the resolut gnd = o
sagl of the Person; 3 § E:“ EE
= = e
“Business Day” means sny dey, other (han @ Saturday or Sunday or public hnthf, =
FAanie are open for genersl business i Wellinglan pnd Auckimnd, 3 | =
—
=¥ ;gg
. AN _ ey
m—" ) ) &
| W"@ ! zé
o an el
W\(L’ maw =
———
-9
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*Creditor” means each and sny Farson 10 whom an Obligation is dus and owed by BoddE during
tha validity pedod of fhis Guarsnies

*Guarantes” means the guarntee by the Bank for e bonefil of the Crecitars pursuant and
subject to the terms and condisions of this Daed;

‘Obligation” meena & legaly enforceabls, uncispuind latility v obtiation of BOIKE to & Gredilor
ranking et jeast par| passu with the claime ol unsecured creditors of BolNZ. PROVIDED THAT
"Cbligamon™ shal not include:

(@) any lisbiity of BolNZ in respect of Spocial, examplary or puribve damages; andlar
{b)  any liabisly fof payment of laxes, rates, imposts, duties or aimisr government charges;
anchior

(e} any claimiabiitylobligation which Is subject to a bona fide dispute; andiar

{d) any obéigation in respect of which the Cradiior has not submiflea propor proof and oiher
| documents and securily. lo ensble BOINZ to discharge tha sald abligations; andios
' (e}  #my Gainiiabligation in respect of a contingeni Sabliity; andiar
in any clainviabdity which is berred by the law of Iimitation o guch simitar laws.

“Ferson” means any person, firm, trust, esiate, coporation, assoctation, co-operative, govemmant
of governmenial agenty,

1.2 Words imporfing the singuisr aumber or pharal rumber shall inclhude the pitral numbar and singular
number respectively. Woirds fmporting any gender shall inguge swery gender,

| 13 References to laws, statules o leglslalion e o the lews. slatues or legisladon for the dme being
in force in MNew Zeafond, unless the conirary appears from tha contest of this Deed

2. GUARANTEE

2.1 The Bank heraby uncondiiionatly guarantaes for the Bannfit of sach Cradiar tha due and punctus
payment by SoihZ of each and every Qbligation (whather at sftaled maturity or upon acosleration |
vy owing o fo become owing by BolNZ io e Credisor during e team of the Guamntss 1o the
fisteert hat showld BolMEZ defmull in the dus and punciusl payment of any such Obligation, fe Bank
shail. upan writen demand by tha retevant Creciler under eliose 3.2, ferhwith pay or couse o be
paid to the Creditor all amourts then due and unpald with respect 1a such Chiigation (ogether willy
all costs shd expenzes incurmed by the Credior in enforcing the Guaranize.

£33 Tne Guersniee 18 & confiming Gusranies ant shall nol be considersd as satsfied by any
Intermedinte paymend and shall remain i force unill the termmation or explry of the Guarenies.

2.3 Subjed 1o fhe terms of this Daad, nelther the lﬂihhﬂfﬂﬂnt. ne-any of the nghts of any Creditor,

undst the Guaranies shall be sffected or dischargad by anything which, but for fhis clause, might
| operate to affect or discharge the llabdity of, ar olhensse previde a defence to, the Guaranior
[whether or nal known to. or done or amited to ba donia by, the Guaranios.

24  MNomithstanding clouse 2.2, @ Credior may al any me by an instrument ka wiiting, relessa the
Bank fram s habdity under fne Guaraniss in reatan 1o that Crecijor.

AT DS Fage 2

Z__"E-- "W

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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23

31

3z

3.3

The Bark sha!! bo lable only tor paymend of an Obligalon In the mannar, (o the sxtent and up 1o
the smount |hal BalNZ would be labe o permitied to make payment in satisfactian of such
Dbligation under eppicabio |aws and raguiaficns and in delzemining ang mMaking such payment
the Sark shill be antiled to deduct the amounts (If any) which he Bank i enlilies in faw or In
equity 1o aat-olf er cobnterelalm ageinst the Credior b whom (bat Oblgatien b5 cwed and the
amounts [ any) which BolNZ coild have set-off o counerciaimod in law of in equily against the
Credfior o whomn such Obligatan s owsd if EolNZ were making payment o hat Crediter = liew of
the Banh, Nething comained in this Deed shall reduce e liabity of the Bank wili respect 1o ey
Chligation of BoiNZ which i reduced or discharged by reason of the inselvency, administration,
liguldation, recasvarship of roorganisation of BolNZ

DEMAND AND PAYMENT

# Grediter ghall be enttind to make & demand under this Deed if and onby 1#

{a)  the Creditor has served wiitlen demand {a *Primary Damand”) on BoiNZ with propar prood
for thee payment of an Obligation whicn remalns unpakd beyind s due dale;

(b}  the Credior has complied with the requimemenis of BOINZ incuding wih regard bo
documantation and security snd (he Prmary Dermand remaing unsetisfed (i whole of in part
for & period of § Buniness Doys sfter submiss’'on of necassary Primary Demand,

A damand by 8 Craditor under this Deed {a "Creditors Demand™) shall be servead on the Bank and
shail ba accompaniad by & statulery doclaration made: by e Crediier or by an Authorised Oicer
af e Srediior stat ng:

{(a) the mesidency and place of business of the Creditor,
(&) that SolhZ has falled to mee! an Cbligation

(¢}  thail s Primary Damand n respect of that Obigation has besn ghven o BolNZ (accompanisg
by a2 venfied copy of that Primary Demand) snd ihat such Primary Demand has remained
unsalisfied for 8 pericd of 5 Business Days as-sistac in 3.7(b);

{dy bret parbculars of the rmeture of ket Obfigaton (sccompamed by & vonfied copy of any
documaond giving riee (o that Obligatinn);

(o) that the Obligation ranks at lsast pasi passi with the claims of unsecured creditors of BolNZ
ganerally,

B e cutstanding amount and currency of that Obligation; anag
{g) et tere 's 0o bena fide dispuio relating to nat Ooligation.

Service of fhe Crediors Demand and el sccompanying cocemants under cces 3.2 on e Bank
shall conslitule & wrilten demand by the Creditor under clause 2.1,

Page 2

Bank of India {New Zealand) Limited
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4, PAYMENTS

4.0 Al paymernts by tha Barik under this Deed shall be made in the suffancy oF curmencss i which the
redevant Chligation s denominated.

£2  Payments hersundes shall be mads free and cleaf of any esduction or Withheldings.. In the &ven
Ihal the Bank i profubites by law from making peyments hersunder free of deductians or
wilhinoidings, than (ke Bank =hail pay such addiienal amount to the relevant Credilor as may be
necesgary i ooder that the acius! amount receives efter all apphcabls deductons ana withholdings
shall eguel fha amount that would have been recefved if sush deductions or withholdings wera not
requined.

5  REPRESENTATIONS
B.1 The Bank regresents and warmants that'
(8] Ris s mpisterad benk duly orgarsed and valdy exising under e ws of ingia,

{6} B has fhe corporats power b enter into this Deed and to parfarm b obligalions imposed
upon & under this Deed [n sccondsnce with its t2rma; and

(€} Whis Deed constilules a vaid, binding and enforceable obiigetion upen i
6. TERMINATION OF GUARANTEE

6.1 NMotwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Deed. the Guarsrdee shall tarminate automatically
oh the first 1o occur of the following events:

{a) Inrespect of all Ouligations it
ity sy substsobisl sssel of BoINZ; o
(i} Aoy shara in the issued capdal of BalNZ

lu.a‘upmpri.llad ar nationalized by Ihe Govemment of New Zealand or by sny politics|
subdivision thereol (the *Government’) or any ently susceeding to the powers of gny such
Geovernment or any agency of any such Gevernment or any such successor antity or any
suihorty which 1z owned of conlrolled by any such Sovarnment or any such successor entily
except where such exprophiation or nationailsation fesulls from the default by SalNZ of any
aiaiide. regulstion or other binding iaw, or

(b) & change in any low or regulstion In any [wisdiclion which renders e Guarantes [legal or
Inoperative in New Tasaland or

{6} BOINZ censing to'be & whally owned subsidlary of the Bank.

B2 Immeadistaly sfter the Bank bocomes aware of {he lermirdion of the Guarshles pursuant o clauso
&1, he Bank shall notity Bo!NZ thereof and gwe notice of such termination oy an advertiserment i

a newspaper circuiating generatly throughout Mew Zeakand.

b (Y g Vo=,

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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73

8.1

SUBROGATION

The Bank ard BoINZ expressly agres that the Bank is and shall be entitled to all the rights and
ramedies of a guarantor under law, ncleding, withon limiting e generality of the foregoing, &l
rights of subrogation which shall seoras 1o tha Ssnik by vitos of any payment bereinder by the
Bank (o of for (he beaell of any Craditor and, subject to the ), she Sank shall be emtitled to claim
ihe benefit of and panticipgate 'n any sscurty now o hereafler held by that Creditor from BolNZ
wither in whole or upon a pro-rats basis, as the case may ba, where the Bank has pald 3l monoys
fo.or for the pepeft of that CredZor under this Deed, nNotwithslanding the genemalily of ihe
foragoing, the Bank shall not exercise or sk 1o enforce any claim sgeinel BolZ (whether or not
In tiqubtaation) for reimbursement 10 the Bank of any moneys zaid pursuant 1o this Deed by the Bank
i a Creditor in respoct of an Obligation unill the defawst of BafMZ In espect of that Obligation has
bean fully remedied by BallME or the Bank,

DEALINGS BETWEEN THE BANK AND THE CREDITORS

Aftar receipt of & written darnand fram a Cresitor undar clause 3.2 the Bank and {hal Credor shail
deal with one another as principal i relation to-all matisre under or In relation to [his Deed, the
Guamntes and Soile

Without limiting the generalty ot clsusa §, fie Bank shall be and is entithed 1o serve sny notice:
demands or statemarts i conmection Witk thia Deed upon that Credtor (at is place of business
specified b the Credilor's Demand) snd the Bank shell be aod v entited (o make any paymant
which Il is Hable ta pay to the Craditer under his Deed directly to that Creditor 2nd ol through any
oler Parson.

NOTICES
Any notoe o the Creditors generaily in respect of this Desd will ba valigiy given If published n g
newapaper croudaing generally throughout Mew Fealand.  Any soch notice shall be desmed 1o

Fenm been given ory the date of putticafion of, # published more than once, on the date of first
publication.

AN S
o,

C—

Bank of India (New Zealand) Limited
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82  Any notics, demnand, ststement or ather document required (o be serven: on or daliverad {o the
Bark or BoMZ under o in reiaton 1o this Deed (*Nalice™ shal be in wilng signed by e pary
Giving 1na Nslice o by an Authorised Cfficer of that party, shall be made, served or given (subjecl
in the caze of the Bank 1o clause 11.2) by being left at or sanl by prepaid mail or by facsimile as
Feilows:

13 the Bank!
Bank of India

Intermational Division

3" Floor, East Wing
Star Housl
-5, G Block

Bandra - Kurls Complex

Sandra {Easy

flumbai - 400 D51

Il

Attention:  Thie Genersl Manager, internaficnal Divislcn

o BolMNZ
| BOI (Mew Zealanid) Limitsd

Level 1B, PricswatarhouseCoapens Tower
| 188 Quay Stmel, Auckland
Mew Zealand
Attnstion Managing Cirector
of to guch ciher sddress or facsamile number a8 shall have oeen notified [in sccordance with this
clause) o the ot pary hereto. Ne fiotice shafl be deermed to have teen recelved by the Bank o
BolM¥ unill schully recelved by the relevan) parly b whoni |§ s addresand @ lis designaied
address.

10. AMENDMENT

10.1 The Bank may, from tima fo tme snd withowt any autharity or sesant of BolNZ o the Craditors,
aller, modly, of add ta ihis Deed if in the easonable opinion of the Bank:

(&) the aleration, moegfication or addition is mede o cormect o marfest error or i of o formal o
technicsl mature,

() the medification, alteration or addition is necessary (o comply with the provisions of any stalute,
whther or not sequired by any statuicry ewtharity, o

Bank of India (New Zealand} Limited
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4 (e} tha aHomtion, modification or addition ia desirabt'e for the purposs of mone advantageously
adminiptening lhe rghis and obligations established undar this Casd.

and in any case such modification, alteraion or addition is considerad by the Bank, acling in good
faift, ol be oo matenaly prejudicial tohe Greditons es whole, 8o far a8 Knowa 1a iL

11, GOVERMING LAW

111 This Caed shall be govermned by and consirued in accordance wilh thi sws foc e e being in
foros ir New Zealand, The Bank end BolNZ each hareby submil, for the purposas of this Deed, 1o
the non-oxchiave [udediclion of the Courts of New Zestard in respect ol dll legal =ctons ansing
ender orn relation to fhis Deed.

112 The Bank hnmeby Frovocably appoints SaiNZ (and BalNZ heraby accopts such sppointment) to be
the agont of the Bank ta sooept servick of procses on bahal of the Bank o mapest of all matiers in
Mew Zealand arising undor o in relation to this Dead and the Bank sgrees hat any such process
shall be propeny served upon the Boank if defivered to BolbiZ at Tis edoress for the service of
Motices s&f out in clouse 8.2,

12, ASSIGNMENT

12 Mo party té this Deod may ssaign fis nights or obligatons hereunder without the cansent in wiiling
of e othar pary.

13. CERTIFICATE

13.4 BolNZ shall sduise the Bank in witling within fourteen (14) doys of & reguest in writing from e
Bank {madé no mone frequenty than guarery or following recespl by it of a Croditor's Demand) 10
do so, ol Bs best estimoia of ine aggregate prhincpal amoun of the Obligations for which | s
indebled &3 i such dats 1o siher 8l of tha Credilors generally or i those Credilors specified by
the Bank in His request

EXECUTED as a Deadt
)
EXECUTED a3 a DEED for and on behalf
of BANK OF INDIA } i
i &W V. ARTHAMART |
Genarml Manager Chief Manager
fntemational intermatlonal Division

EXECUTED ss 8 DEED for and on benat )

of BO| [MEW ZEALAND) LIMITED ] ﬁ{;.._.l_/‘\-"‘-/"’
1 v :_‘i e “"}vﬂ—" ¥l
Tl‘ﬁﬁ/

—
{ AEAR )
Diractor

FPesRao

Director

Bank of india (New Zealand) Limited



